
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 16, 2011    Page 1 of 2 
 

 
P.O. BOX 675 ▪ 61750 CHOLLITA ROAD ▪ JOSHUA TREE ▪ CALIFORNIA 92252 

TELEPHONE (760) 366-8438    FAX (760) 366-9528    E-MAIL  jbwd@jbwd.com 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 16, 2011  7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 

 

NOTE:  THIS MEETING WILL ALSO BE HELD  
AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATION BY TELECONFERENCE: 

8153 CHERRY AVENUE 
FONTANA CA  92335 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Pg.   1-3 
Pg.   4-28 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Approve the Minutes of the February 2, 2011 Regular Meeting  
B. Approve Financial Report for January 2011 
 

Pg.  29-31 7. PUBLIC INFORMATION CONSULTANT REPORT – KATHLEEN RADNICH  
Information only. 
 

 8. PRESENTATION ON NEW E-1 D-2 BOOSTER PUMPS 
Information only. 
 

Pg.  32-50 9. CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE UPDATE  
Recommend that the Board adopt Resolution No 11-867 including Exhibit A and 
Attachment A amending and updating the District’s Conflict of Interest Code. 
 



                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 16, 2011    Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
Pg.  51-53 

 
 
 

10. 

 
 
 
PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 
Information only. 
 

 11. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 12. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 13. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 14. CLOSED SESSION 
1.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on existing 
litigation pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re Joshua 
Basin Water District v. Robert Ellis, San Bernardino Superior Court - Joshua Tree District, 
Case No. CIVMS 900168). 
  
2.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - POTENTIAL LITIGATION 
At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on existing 
litigation pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re Joshua 
Basin Water District v. Ironhead LLC a California Limited Liability Company, Praxedes 
Beard and Does 1 – 10 inclusive, San Bernardino Superior Court - Joshua Tree District, Case 
No. CIVMS 1100087). 
 

 15. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
 

 16. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
The Board of Directors reserves the right to take action on items reserved for discussion only.  
 
INFORMATION 
During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your 
information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and appreciates 
your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone 
Joshua Basin Water District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a 
disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 
92252 during normal business hours. 



 

  Regular Meeting of February 2, 2011 

 
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

February 2, 2011 
 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 7:00 PM  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Led by: Mickey Luckman 

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Bill Long                        Present 
Mickey Luckman           Present 
Mike Luhrs                     Absent 
Mike Reynolds               Present 
Gary Wilson                   Absent 
 

 
STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 

Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 9 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Long/Reynolds 3/0 (2 Absent) to approve the agenda for the February 2, 2011 Regular Meeting of 

the Board of Directors.  
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None.   
 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Long/Reynolds 3/0 (2 Absent) to Approve the Minutes of the January 19, 2011 Regular Board 

Meeting. 
 
7. PROPOSED COUNTY LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT 
General Manager Joe Guzzetta gave a presentation recommending that the District provide comments on 

the proposed County Landscape Ordinance that would make the ordinance more applicable to the 
high desert. In addition to aspects of the ordinance that are not suited to the high desert climate, the 
Board discussed provisions that make the ordinance costly for customers such as the requirement 
for landscape architectural plans to be designed by a landscape architect. 

MSC Long/Reynolds 3/0 (2 Absent)  to join with the Alliance for Water Awareness and Conservation in 
recommending changes to the County Landscape Ordinance that would make it more applicable to 
the high desert and that would make it more customer-friendly. 

Page 1 of 53



 

  Regular Meeting of February 2, 2011 

 
8. DISTRICT POSITION ON EXTENSION OF PROVISIONS WITH MOJAVE WATER 

AGENCY FOR CAPACITY IN THE MORONGO PIPELINE 
GM Guzzetta gave a presentation recommending that the Board develop a position on whether or not the 

Morongo Pipeline capacity allocation to participating water agencies should be extended beyond 
2022, and to have discussions with other water agencies. Marina West, General Manager for 
Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency commented that her agency would support discussions 
concerning this matter. 

It was the Consensus of the Board that the District should meet with representatives of other participating 
water agencies to discuss this matter.  President Mickey Luckman appointed Vice President Mike 
Reynolds and Director Bill Long as an ad hoc committee to meet with other agencies. 

 
9. CONSIDER AUTHORIZATION OF UPDATED RATE & FEE STUDY 
Assistant General Manager Susan Greer gave the staff presentation recommending that Bartle Wells 

Associates be retained to conduct a water rate & fee study.  The Board discussed the need for a 
professional fee study, the cost and timing of a study. 

 MSC Reynolds/Long 3/0 (2 Absent) to table this matter until the next Board Meeting. 
 
10. PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 
GM Guzzetta reported that the Urban Water Management Plan consultants have drafted three chapters; the 

Ground water recharge project engineering is at 35% to 40% complete; the E-1 and D-2 booster 
pumps have been installed and will begin a two week test period; the District property management 
consultants have been asked to give a proposal for acquiring future reservoir sites. 

 
11. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
12. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
GM Guzzetta reported that the automatic switch for the emergency generator at the District offices has 

been installed.  The routine valve maintenance has been completed in the Copper Mountain Mesa 
area; a Water Supply Assessment has been requested for a solar project in the northeast area of the 
District and will be brought back to the Board in the next few meetings. 

 
13. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Vice President Reynolds reported attendance at a MWA Board meeting where the UWMP is nearing 

completion.  MWA also reported that the State Water Project is expected to make 65% to 75% 
allocation compared with 15% this time last year.  He also attended the meeting of the ASBSCD 
where the managing engineer of San Bernardino Valley Water District gave a presentation on their 
innovative water wise landscape demonstration garden.  They have teamed up with Home Depot to 
provide plants.  It was also suggested that developers be encouraged to install landscaping in model 
homes based on the demonstration garden concepts.  He also attended a meeting with State Senator 
Bob Dutton who noted that an elaborate conference table in the Governor’s office has been 
replaced by Governor Jerry Brown with a 30 foot picnic table. 

President Luckman reported attending the MWA Technical Advisory Committee where videos were 
shown of the Mojave River flooding.  The TAC also discussed the need for more groundwater 
recharge locations to take advantage of the water in wet years. 

Page 2 of 53



 

  Regular Meeting of February 2, 2011 

14. CLOSED SESSION 
The Board recessed to Closed Session at 8:07 pm to consider the following: 
1.  Conference with Legal Counsel on existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code 
Section 54956.9.  (Re Joshua Basin Water District v. Robert Ellis, San Bernardino Superior Court - Joshua 
Tree District, Case No. CIVMS 900168).  

2.  Conference with Legal Counsel on a matter of potential litigation pursuant to subdivision (c) of 
Government Coder Section 54956.9. (One matter - unidentified). 
 
The Board reconvened in open session at 8:28 pm. 
 
15. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
District Counsel Gil Granito reported that the Board has met in closed session.  There was no reportable 

action on the first item. 
On the second item a lawsuit has been filed. The subject of the litigation is unidentified as it may impede 

service of process. 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 8:30 PM 
MSC Long/Reynolds 3/0 (2 Absent) to adjourn the February 2, 2011 Regular Meeting of the Board of 

Directors. 
 
Respectfully submitted; 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
 
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Wednesday February 16th 

2011 at 7:00 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 53



Page 4 of 53



Page 5 of 53



Page 6 of 53



Page 7 of 53



Page 8 of 53



Page 9 of 53



Page 10 of 53



Page 11 of 53



Page 12 of 53



Page 13 of 53



Page 14 of 53



Page 15 of 53



Page 16 of 53



Page 17 of 53



Page 18 of 53



Page 19 of 53



Page 20 of 53



Page 21 of 53



Page 22 of 53



Page 23 of 53



Page 24 of 53



Page 25 of 53



Page 26 of 53



Page 27 of 53



Page 28 of 53



Public Information Consultant Report OVERVIEW 
 
KATHLEEN J. RADICH                  FEBRUARY 16TH, 2011 
 
FARMERS MARKET  2011 SEASON PLANS  
 
(Begins in March) Saturdays 8-12:30pm 
We offer a welcomed “watering/cooling station” while serving as a resource for 
water related information, garden tour sign-ups, CAC and Docent recruitment, 
and obtaining updated contact information of our patrons. 
 
March Theme:  Fix-a-Leak campaign/World Water Day Drip guessing 
game 
April Theme:    Native Plants Save Water (demo:  Quick-start of 
native seeds     technique) 
May Theme:    Meter Reading display 
June Theme:   Water Footprint per National Geographic 
July Theme:    Landscape Smart Irrigation 
August Theme:    Water Quality (our annual report)  info on our routine  
    testing and a table-top “show and tell” on water  
    contamination 
September Theme:  Water Wise Demonstration Station 
October Theme:  TBA 
November Theme:  TBA 
 
SPRING PUBLIC OUTREACH CALENDAR 
 
April 11th  FHES Field Day / Water Wise Water Course in the Gardens 
April 16th  “Desert Landscape” Art Show , Water Conservation and  
   tours at the Water Wise Gardens  (2pm-6pm) 
April 17th  MBCA Tour of our  Water Wise Gardens  
April 20th (am) JTES Field Day /Water Wise Water Course in the Gardens 
April 20th (pm) JBWD Water Science Fair & Board Meeting 
April 26th  MWA Basin Tours  (JBWD is the first stop:  TOPICS:    
   Hospital Package Treatment Plant & the Water Wise   
   Garden) 
May (TBA)  MWA Toilet Exchange program  (two Saturdays?) 
 
ADDITIONAL UPDATES 
 
District Website  
Newsletter  
 
**Attachement:  Water Science Fair Document 
 

Page 29 of 53



 
 

 

Are you thinking of doing a Science Fair Project? 
 
Then try experimenting with something everyone needs and uses 
everyday:  WATER!   If your science project explores water 
conservation or water quality  (projects #2, #4, #5, #7, #8) as listed on the 
backside of this paper, you can enter your school science fair project 
into your local water district contest!  First place wins $25 in cash!   
 
This contest will be held at your local Water District’s Office at an April board meeting.  Your 
local water district and the Morongo Basin Conservation Association are prize sponsors and 
both will be present to judge the entries.   Prizes will be awarded at the beginning of their 
public meeting!  To enter your project, simply return the entry form below to your local water 
district before March 10th. 
 
Your local water district is:     Joshua Basin Water District located at  61750 Chollita Rd. in Joshua Tree 
 
Your water district’s competition date is:   Wednesday,  April  20th, 2011  in the District Board Room 
 
For more information, contact: Kathleen J. Radnich  at (760) 218-2822 or Email:   kjradnich@jbwd.com 
 

Good luck, and always remember to “Use our water wisely!” 
 
Cut and return entry form below to:_____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Student Name_________________________________________________________Grade_______________ School_______________________________________ 
 
 
Teacher’s Name_______________________________________________________ PH#_____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Guardian’s Name:_______________________________________________________  PH#____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Guardian’s Signature (permission for media release for minor)_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Water Science Project ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NOTE:  All projects must be delivered by 3pm to the water district office on the date of the contest and must be removed  by 
3pm the following day.   

Grades 
K-6th 

Page 30 of 53



 
WATER CONSERVATION AND WATER QUALITY EXPERIMENTS 

 
 
1.  AQUIFER IN A CUP  (www.groundwater.org/kc/activity2.html)  Try these variations: 

• How fast does water move between rock versus sand?  
• How fast does oil penetrate the ground compared to water? 
• Can earth (dirt) filter dirty water to be clean again? 

 
2.  WATER CYCLE IN A BAG (www.groundwater.org/kc/activity1.html)  Try these variations: 

• Which evaporates faster:  cold water or room temperature water?  
• Which evaporates faster:  cold water in sunlight or warm water in darkness? 
• What can be done to slow evaporation and loss of water? 

 
3.  THE (WATER)  FILTER CHALLENGE (www.groundwater.org/kc/activity7.html)  Try these variations: 

• Which can filter oil out of water best:  sand, activated charcoal, a sponge or a cotton ball? 
• Which can filter dirt out of water best:  sand, activated charcoal, a sponge or a cotton ball? 

 
4.  A GALLON A DAY (http-://tlc.howstuffworks.com/family/science-projects-for-kids-density-and-volume2.htm)   go to:  
KATE PLUS EIGHT 

• Can you get through a whole day using only one gallon of water? 
 
5.  WASHED AWAY: DENSITY AND VOLUME  (http-://tlc.howstuffworks.com/family/science-projects-for-kids-
density-and-volume3.htm) go to: KATE PLUS EIGHT  Try these variations: 

• Can you save water by planting plants only in mulch instead of soil? 
• Can you save water by planting plants in soil protected by the wind? 
• How can you slow down water “run-off?” 

 
6.  UNDOING (WATER) POLLUTION (http-://tlc.howstuffworks.com/family/science-projects-for-kids-density-and-
volume4.htm)Can you UNDO water pollution?  Prove it! 
 
7.  WATER CONSERVATION CHALLENGE:  Pick five activities to do for one month.  Compare your family’s  water 
 bill for water that was used  last year versus this year at the same time 
        .   The question:  What percentage of water can you save by doing just 5 of the following activities?: 

• Do outdoor watering only when it is cool (early morning or late evening) 
• Use bathtub water to water your outdoor garden and inside plants 
• Eliminate bathtub bathing and only take showers 
• Cut your shower time to under five minutes (be sure to use a timer!) 
• Install a water efficient shower head 
• Install faucet “aerators” on all your kitchen and bathroom sinks. 
• Place a layer of mulch, or woodchips, or gravel or leaves on your outdoor garden beds. 
• Water using short repeated bursts of water onto the plants instead of a steady sprinkling. 
• Identify and help your parents repair any faucet leaks. 
• Turn off the water while lathering for efficient hand washing. 
• Turn off the water while brushing your teeth. 
• Recycle remains of drinking water from meals for plant watering. 
• Water your outdoor plants when it is NOT windy. 
• Change to “sweeping” outdoor concrete instead of “hosing” it clean. 
• Use a water-efficient nozzle (with a “turn off valve) when using your garden hose instead of letting the garden hose 

run. 
• Wash only full loads of laundry (not small loads.)   
• Wash only full loads of dishes with automatic dishwashers. 
• Check and repair your outdoor water system for leaks, overspray and broken sprinkler heads. 
• Cover your swimming pool with a plastic cover to minimize evaporation. 
• Identify areas and use rocks to slow water run-off/erosion from your landscape watering so less watering is needed 

 
8.  INVENT YOUR OWN WATER SAVING DEVICE!  Get creative and test it out! 

Page 31 of 53



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SHEET 

 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors       February 16, 2011 
 
 
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
From: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
 
TOPIC: CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE UPDATE 

  
RECOMMENDATION: That the Board adopt Resolution No 11-867 including Appendix A and 

Attachment A amending and updating the District’s Conflict of Interest 
Code. 
 

ANALYSIS: The Joshua Basin Water District is a public entity organized and 
operating pursuant to the California Water Code and is subject to 
requirements of the Political Reform Act of 1974.  The Code needs to be 
updated to include the current positions subject to reporting 
requirements and to simplify the Categories of Disclosure.  
 
The Code is consistent with state law and with codes adopted by many 
governmental agencies.  Below are the lists of positions proposed to be 
required to report interests, and those previously required to report 
interests: 
 
Proposed                                    Previous 
Director                                      Director 
General Manager                         General Manager - Secretary 
Assistant General Manager/          Assistant General Manager/Controller  
           Controller                                 
                                                                 

Human Resources/                      Accountant/Personnel Analyst              
Administrative Services                          
        Supervisor                          Maintenance II/Support Svcs. 
                                       

Accountant 
 

GIS Coordinator                          GIS  
 

Water Distribution Supervisor       Chief of Operations 
Water Production Supervisor        Chief of Operations 
 

Attorney                                    General Counsel 
 

Auditor                                      Consultants 
Engineer                                     
 
Approval of this item will update the Conflict of Interest Code and 
designated positions in compliance with state law. 

 
Page 32 of 53



           DRAFT 
RESOLUTION NO. 11-867 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO 

THE DISTRICT'S CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act ("Act"), Government Code Section 81000 et seq, 
requires state and local government agencies to adopt and promulgate Conflict of Interest Codes; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act requires that the state and local government agencies review their 
Conflict of Interest Code biannually in order to ensure that it remains in conformity with the Act 
and to update said code with respect to any organizational changes which have occurred in the 
agency since the adoption and last amendment of the code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Fair Political Practices Commission ("FPPC") has adopted a regulation, 
2 Cal. Code of Regs., Section 18730, which contains the terms of a standard Conflict of Interest 
Code, which can be incorporated by reference by state and local government agencies as the 
Conflict of Interest Code of such an agency, and which may be amended by the FPPC from time 
to time to conform to amendments in the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District has previously adopted said Standard 
Conflict of Interest Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin Water District desires to amend 
the District's Conflict of Interest Code for the purpose of updating and restating Appendix "A" 
thereto to reflect organizational changes of the District. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin 
Water District DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, ORDER AND DETERMINE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1. The Board of Directors hereby ratifies and confirms the District's adoption of the 
Standard Conflict of Interest Code and hereby adopts an amended Appendix "A" thereto which 
sets forth designated positions and disclosure categories to the District's Conflict of Interest 
Code, all of which is set forth in Exhibit "A" to this Resolution. 
 
 2. The Secretary of, the District is hereby authorized and directed, to file with the 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, a copy of this Amendment and such other information as may 
be required by the Board of Supervisors. 
 
 
 
 
 Page 33 of 53



 3. The Secretary of the District is hereby ordered and directed to file the Amended 
Conflict of Interest Code in the office of the District, and to retain and incorporate same in the 
District's "Administrative Code". 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 16th day of February, 2011. 
 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINED: 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Mickey Luckman, President 
      Joshua Basin Water District and of the 
      Board of Directors thereof 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Joseph Guzzetta, Secretary 
Joshua Basin Water District and of 
the Board of Directors thereof 
 
 

Page 34 of 53



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

 
 

 The Political Reform Act (Government Code, Section 81000, et seq.) requires state and 
local government agencies, including the Joshua Basin Water District, to adopt and promulgate 
conflict of interest codes.  The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation (2 
California Code of Regulations, Section 18730) (copy attached) which contains the terms of a 
standard conflict of interest code, which can be adopted by reference.  After public notice and 
hearing, it may be amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to 
amendments in the Political Reform Act.  Therefore, the terms of 2 California code of 
Regulations, Section 18730, and any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission, are hereby incorporated by reference.  This regulation, and the attached 
Appendix designating employees and establishing disclosure categories, shall constitute the 
Conflict of Interest Code of the Joshua Basin Water District. 
 
 Designated employees/positions (see Appendix “A,” attached hereto) shall file their 
statements of economic interests with the Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin 
Water District, who will make the statements available for public inspection and reproduction 
upon request.  (Government Code, Section 81008.)  Upon receipt of the statement(s) of the 
designated employees/positions, the Secretary of the Board of Directors shall make and retain a 
copy and forward the original of the statement(s) to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 
County of San Bernardino, which shall be the “filing officer” as required by state law. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” TO RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

Page 35 of 53



EXHIBIT “B” 

APPENDIX “A” 
APPENDIX OF DESIGNATED POSITIONS AND  

CATEGORIES OF DISCLOSURE 
 

 
DESIGNATED POSITIONS    DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 
        (See Attachment No. 1) 
 
 Director        1-4 
 General Manager       1-4 
 Assistant General Manager/Controller    1-4 
 Human Resources/Administrative Services Supervisor  1-4 
 Accountant        1-4 
 GIS Coordinator       1-4 
 Water Distribution Supervisor     1-4 
 Water Production supervisor      1-4 
 Attorney        5 
 Auditor        5 
 Engineer        5 
 
 
OFFICIALS WHO MANAGE PUBLIC INVESTMENTS 
 
It has been determined that the positions listed below manage public investments and will file a 
Statement of Economic Interests pursuant to Government Code Section 87200: 
 
 Directors 
 District/Board Officer 
 Controller/Chief Financial Officer 
 
 *Consultants shall be included in the list of designated positions and shall Disclose 
pursuant to the broadest disclosure category in the code subject to the following limitations.  
 
 The General Manager may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a 
“designated position” is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus is not 
required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements in this section. Such a written 
determination shall include a description of the consultant’s duties and, based upon that 
description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements.  The General Manager’s 
determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner 
and location as this Conflict of Interest Code. 
 
 The Designated position of Consultant includes attorneys as a position subject to the 
foregoing specialized disclosure category. 
 
 

Page 36 of 53



DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 
(Attachment No. 1 to Appendix "A") 

 
 

CATEGORY 1 
 
Persons in this category shall disclose all interest in real property within the jurisdiction.  Real 
property shall be deemed to be within the jurisdiction if the property or any part of it is located 
within or not more than two miles outside the boundaries of the jurisdiction or within two miles 
of any land owned or used by the District. 
 
CATEGORY 2 
 
Persons in this category shall disclose all investments and business positions. 
 
The Political Reform Act defines investment as follows: 
 

 “Investment” means any financial interest in or security issued by a business 
entity, including but not limited to common stock, preferred stock, rights, warrants, 
options, debt instruments, and any partnership or other ownership interest owned directly, 
indirectly, or beneficially by the public official, or other filer, or his or her immediate 
family, if the business entity or any parent, subsidiary, or otherwise related business 
entity has an interest in real property in the jurisdiction, or does business or plans to do 
business in the jurisdiction, or has done business within the jurisdiction at any time 
during the two years prior to the time any statement or other action is required under this 
title.  No asset shall be deemed an investment unless its fair market value equals or 
exceeds two thousand dollars ($2,000).  The term “investment” does not include a time or 
demand deposit in a financial institution, shares in a credit union, any insurance policy, 
interest in a diversified mutual fund registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or a common trust fund which 
is created pursuant to Section 1564 of the Financial Code, or any bond or other debt 
instrument issued by any government or government agency.  Investments of an 
individual include a pro rata share of investments of any business entity, mutual fund, or 
trust in which the individual or immediate family owns, directly, indirectly, or 
beneficially, a 10-percent interest or greater. 

 
According to the Political Reform Act, a business position is a position of director, officer, 
partner, trustee, employee, or any position of management in any organization or enterprise 
operated for profit, including but not limited to a proprietorship, partnership, firm, business trust, 
joint venture, syndicate, corporation or association. 
 
CATEGORY 3 
 
Persons in this category shall disclose all income and business positions 
 
The Political Reform Act defines income as follows: 

Page 37 of 53



 
“Income” means a payment received, including but not limited to any salary, wage, advance, 
dividend, interest, rent, proceeds from any sale, gift, including any gift of food or beverage, loan, 
forgiveness or payment of indebtedness received by the filer, reimbursement for expenses other 
than an employer, and including any community property interest in the income of a spouse.  
Income also includes any outstanding loans.  Income of an individual also include a pro rata 
share of any business entity or trust in which the individual or spouse owns, directly, indirectly 
or beneficially, a 10-percent interest or greater. 
 
CATEGORY 4 
 
Persons in this category shall disclose all business positions, investments in, or income 
(including gifts and loans) received from business entities that manufacture, provide or sell 
service and/or supplies of a type utilized by the Agency and associated with the job assignment 
of designated positions assigned to this disclosure category. 
 
CATEGORY 5 
 
Consultants who are not employed as full-time staff members of the Agency shall nonetheless be 
included as a designated employee and subject to the disclosure requirements herein.  However, 
those consultants whose positions are marked with an asterisk (*) in Appendix "A" of this Code, 
or any other consultants which may be hired, may not be required to fully comply with the 
disclosure requirements herein where the range of duties which they are hired to perform is 
limited in scope.  Such determination shall be made in writing by the General Manager of the 
District and shall include a description of the Consultant’s duties and, based upon that 
description, a statement of the extent of the consultant’s disclosure requirements, if any.  This 
determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner 
and location as this Code. 

Page 38 of 53



-1- 

§ 18730. Provisions of Conflict-of-Interest Codes. 

 
(a) Incorporation by reference of the terms of this regulation along with the designation of 
employees and the formulation of disclosure categories in the Appendix referred to below 
constitute the adoption and promulgation of a conflict-of-interest code within the meaning of 
Section 87300 or the amendment of a conflict-of-interest code within the meaning of Section 
87306 if the terms of this regulation are substituted for terms of a conflict-of-interest code 
already in effect. A code so amended or adopted and promulgated requires the reporting of 
reportable items in a manner substantially equivalent to the requirements of article 2 of chapter 7 
of the Political Reform Act, Sections 81000, et seq. The requirements of a conflict-of-interest 
code are in addition to other requirements of the Political Reform Act, such as the general 
prohibition against conflicts of interest contained in Section 87100, and to other state or local 
laws pertaining to conflicts of interest. 
 
(b) The terms of a conflict-of-interest code amended or adopted and promulgated pursuant to this 
regulation are as follows: 
 
(1) Section 1. Definitions.  
 
The definitions contained in the Political Reform Act of 1974, regulations of the Fair Political 
Practices Commission (Regulations 18110, et seq.), and any amendments to the Act or 
regulations, are incorporated by reference into this conflict-of-interest code.  
 
(2) Section 2. Designated Employees.  
 
The persons holding positions listed in the Appendix are designated employees. It has been 
determined that these persons make or participate in the making of decisions which may 
foreseeably have a material effect on economic interests.  
 
(3) Section 3. Disclosure Categories.  
 
This code does not establish any disclosure obligation for those designated employees who are 
also specified in Section 87200 if they are designated in this code in that same capacity or if the 
geographical jurisdiction of this agency is the same as or is wholly included within the 
jurisdiction in which those persons must report their economic interests pursuant to article 2 of 
chapter 7 of the Political Reform Act, Sections 87200, et seq.  
 
In addition, this code does not establish any disclosure obligation for any designated employees 
who are designated in a conflict-of-interest code for another agency, if all of the following apply:  
 
(A) The geographical jurisdiction of this agency is the same as or is wholly included within the 
jurisdiction of the other agency;  
 
(B) The disclosure assigned in the code of the other agency is the same as that required under 
article 2 of chapter 7 of the Political Reform Act, Section 87200; and  
 

Page 39 of 53



-2- 

(C) The filing officer is the same for both agencies.1  
 
Such persons are covered by this code for disqualification purposes only. With respect to all 
other designated employees, the disclosure categories set forth in the Appendix specify which 
kinds of economic interests are reportable. Such a designated employee shall disclose in his or 
her statement of economic interests those economic interests he or she has which are of the kind 
described in the disclosure categories to which he or she is assigned in the Appendix. It has been 
determined that the economic interests set forth in a designated employee's disclosure categories 
are the kinds of economic interests which he or she foreseeably can affect materially through the 
conduct of his or her office.  
 
(4) Section 4. Statements of Economic Interests: Place of Filing.  
 
The code reviewing body shall instruct all designated employees within its code to file 
statements of economic interests with the agency or with the code reviewing body, as provided 
by the code reviewing body in the agency's conflict-of-interest code.2  
 
(5) Section 5. Statements of Economic Interests: Time of Filing.  
 
(A) Initial Statements. All designated employees employed by the agency on the effective date of 
this code, as originally adopted, promulgated and approved by the code reviewing body, shall 
file statements within 30 days after the effective date of this code. Thereafter, each person 
already in a position when it is designated by an amendment to this code shall file an initial 
statement within 30 days after the effective date of the amendment.  
 
(B) Assuming Office Statements. All persons assuming designated positions after the effective 
date of this code shall file statements within 30 days after assuming the designated positions, or 
if subject to State Senate confirmation, 30 days after being nominated or appointed.  
 
(C) Annual Statements. All designated employees shall file statements no later than April 1.  
 
(D) Leaving Office Statements. All persons who leave designated positions shall file statements 
within 30 days after leaving office.  
 
(5.5) Section 5.5. Statements for Persons Who Resign Prior to Assuming Office. 
 
Any person who resigns within 12 months of initial appointment, or within 30 days of the date of 
notice provided by the filing officer to file an assuming office statement, is not deemed to have 
assumed office or left office, provided he or she did not make or participate in the making of, or 
use his or her position to influence any decision and did not receive or become entitled to receive 
any form of payment as a result of his or her appointment. Such persons shall not file either an 
assuming or leaving office statement. 
 
(A) Any person who resigns a position within 30 days of the date of a notice from the filing 
officer shall do both of the following:  
 

Page 40 of 53



-3- 

(1) File a written resignation with the appointing power; and  
 
(2) File a written statement with the filing officer declaring under penalty of perjury that during 
the period between appointment and resignation he or she did not make, participate in the 
making, or use the position to influence any decision of the agency or receive, or become entitled 
to receive, any form of payment by virtue of being appointed to the position.  
 
(6) Section 6. Contents of and Period Covered by Statements of Economic Interests. 
 
(A) Contents of Initial Statements.  
 
Initial statements shall disclose any reportable investments, interests in real property and 
business positions held on the effective date of the code and income received during the 12 
months prior to the effective date of the code.  
 
(B) Contents of Assuming Office Statements.  
 
Assuming office statements shall disclose any reportable investments, interests in real property 
and business positions held on the date of assuming office or, if subject to State Senate 
confirmation or appointment, on the date of nomination, and income received during the 12 
months prior to the date of assuming office or the date of being appointed or nominated, 
respectively.  
 
(C) Contents of Annual Statements. Annual statements shall disclose any reportable investments, 
interests in real property, income and business positions held or received during the previous 
calendar year provided, however, that the period covered by an employee's first annual statement 
shall begin on the effective date of the code or the date of assuming office whichever is later, or 
for a board or commission member subject to Section 87302.6, the day after the closing date of 
the most recent statement filed by the member pursuant to Regulation 18754.  
 
(D) Contents of Leaving Office Statements.  
 
Leaving office statements shall disclose reportable investments, interests in real property, income 
and business positions held or received during the period between the closing date of the last 
statement filed and the date of leaving office.  
 
(7) Section 7. Manner of Reporting. 
 
Statements of economic interests shall be made on forms prescribed by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission and supplied by the agency, and shall contain the following information: 
 
(A) Investment and Real Property Disclosure.  
 
When an investment or an interest in real property3 is required to be reported,4 the statement 
shall contain the following:  
 

Page 41 of 53



-4- 

1. A statement of the nature of the investment or interest; 
 
2. The name of the business entity in which each investment is held, and a general description of 
the business activity in which the business entity is engaged; 
 
3. The address or other precise location of the real property; 
 
4. A statement whether the fair market value of the investment or interest in real property equals 
or exceeds $2,000, exceeds $10,000, exceeds $100,000, or exceeds $1,000,000. 
 
(B) Personal Income Disclosure. When personal income is required to be reported,5 the statement 
shall contain:  
 
1. The name and address of each source of income aggregating $500 or more in value, or $50 or 
more in value if the income was a gift, and a general description of the business activity, if any, 
of each source; 
 
2. A statement whether the aggregate value of income from each source, or in the case of a loan, 
the highest amount owed to each source, was $1,000 or less, greater than $1,000, greater than 
$10,000, or greater than $100,000; 
 
3. A description of the consideration, if any, for which the income was received; 
 
4. In the case of a gift, the name, address and business activity of the donor and any intermediary 
through which the gift was made; a description of the gift; the amount or value of the gift; and 
the date on which the gift was received; 
 
5. In the case of a loan, the annual interest rate and the security, if any, given for the loan and the 
term of the loan. 
 
(C) Business Entity Income Disclosure. When income of a business entity, including income of a 
sole proprietorship, is required to be reported,6 the statement shall contain:  
 
1. The name, address, and a general description of the business activity of the business entity; 
 
2. The name of every person from whom the business entity received payments if the filer's pro 
rata share of gross receipts from such person was equal to or greater than $10,000. 
 
(D) Business Position Disclosure. When business positions are required to be reported, a 
designated employee shall list the name and address of each business entity in which he or she is 
a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or in which he or she holds any position of 
management, a description of the business activity in which the business entity is engaged, and 
the designated employee's position with the business entity.  
 
(E) Acquisition or Disposal During Reporting Period. In the case of an annual or leaving office 
statement, if an investment or an interest in real property was partially or wholly acquired or 

Page 42 of 53



-5- 

disposed of during the period covered by the statement, the statement shall contain the date of 
acquisition or disposal.  
 
(8) Section 8. Prohibition on Receipt of Honoraria. 
 
(A) No member of a state board or commission, and no designated employee of a state or local 
government agency, shall accept any honorarium from any source, if the member or employee 
would be required to report the receipt of income or gifts from that source on his or her statement 
of economic interests. This section shall not apply to any part-time member of the governing 
board of any public institution of higher education, unless the member is also an elected official.  
 
Subdivisions (a), (b), and (c) of Section 89501 shall apply to the prohibitions in this section.  
 
This section shall not limit or prohibit payments, advances, or reimbursements for travel and 
related lodging and subsistence authorized by Section 89506.  
 
(8.1) Section 8.1. Prohibition on Receipt of Gifts in Excess of $420. 
 
(A) No member of a state board or commission, and no designated employee of a state or local 
government agency, shall accept gifts with a total value of more than $420 in a calendar year 
from any single source, if the member or employee would be required to report the receipt of 
income or gifts from that source on his or her statement of economic interests. This section shall 
not apply to any part-time member of the governing board of any public institution of higher 
education, unless the member is also an elected official.  
 
Subdivisions (e), (f), and (g) of Section 89503 shall apply to the prohibitions in this section.  
 
(8.2) Section 8.2. Loans to Public Officials. 
 
(A) No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from the date of his or her 
election to office through the date that he or she vacates office, receive a personal loan from any 
officer, employee, member, or consultant of the state or local government agency in which the 
elected officer holds office or over which the elected officer's agency has direction and control.  
 
(B) No public official who is exempt from the state civil service system pursuant to subdivisions 
(c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 4 of Article VII of the Constitution shall, while he or she holds 
office, receive a personal loan from any officer, employee, member, or consultant of the state or 
local government agency in which the public official holds office or over which the public 
official's agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made to a 
public official whose duties are solely secretarial, clerical, or manual.  
 
(C) No elected officer of a state or local government agency shall, from the date of his or her 
election to office through the date that he or she vacates office, receive a personal loan from any 
person who has a contract with the state or local government agency to which that elected officer 
has been elected or over which that elected officer's agency has direction and control. This 
subdivision shall not apply to loans made by banks or other financial institutions or to any 

Page 43 of 53



-6- 

indebtedness created as part of a retail installment or credit card transaction, if the loan is made 
or the indebtedness created in the lender's regular course of business on terms available to 
members of the public without regard to the elected officer's official status.  
 
(D) No public official who is exempt from the state civil service system pursuant to subdivisions 
(c), (d), (e), (f), and (g) of Section 4 of Article VII of the Constitution shall, while he or she holds 
office, receive a personal loan from any person who has a contract with the state or local 
government agency to which that elected officer has been elected or over which that elected 
officer's agency has direction and control. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made by 
banks or other financial institutions or to any indebtedness created as part of a retail installment 
or credit card transaction, if the loan is made or the indebtedness created in the lender's regular 
course of business on terms available to members of the public without regard to the elected 
officer's official status. This subdivision shall not apply to loans made to a public official whose 
duties are solely secretarial, clerical, or manual.  
 
(E) This section shall not apply to the following:  
 
1. Loans made to the campaign committee of an elected officer or candidate for elective office. 
 
2. Loans made by a public official's spouse, child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, 
sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or first cousin, or 
the spouse of any such persons, provided that the person making the loan is not acting as an 
agent or intermediary for any person not otherwise exempted under this section. 
 
3. Loans from a person which, in the aggregate, do not exceed five hundred dollars ($500) at any 
given time. 
 
4. Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998. 
 
(8.3) Section 8.3. Loan Terms. 
 
(A) Except as set forth in subdivision (B), no elected officer of a state or local government 
agency shall, from the date of his or her election to office through the date he or she vacates 
office, receive a personal loan of $500 or more, except when the loan is in writing and clearly 
states the terms of the loan, including the parties to the loan agreement, date of the loan, amount 
of the loan, term of the loan, date or dates when payments shall be due on the loan and the 
amount of the payments, and the rate of interest paid on the loan.  
 
(B) This section shall not apply to the following types of loans:  
 
1. Loans made to the campaign committee of the elected officer. 
 
2. Loans made to the elected officer by his or her spouse, child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, 
brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, nephew, niece, aunt, uncle, or first 
cousin, or the spouse of any such person, provided that the person making the loan is not acting 
as an agent or intermediary for any person not otherwise exempted under this section. 

Page 44 of 53



-7- 

 
3. Loans made, or offered in writing, before January 1, 1998. 
 
(C) Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any other provision of Title 9 of the 
Government Code.  
 
(8.4) Section 8.4. Personal Loans. 
 
(A) Except as set forth in subdivision (B), a personal loan received by any designated employee 
shall become a gift to the designated employee for the purposes of this section in the following 
circumstances:  
 
1. If the loan has a defined date or dates for repayment, when the statute of limitations for filing 
an action for default has expired. 
 
2. If the loan has no defined date or dates for repayment, when one year has elapsed from the 
later of the following: 
 
a. The date the loan was made.  
 
b. The date the last payment of $100 or more was made on the loan.  
 
c. The date upon which the debtor has made payments on the loan aggregating to less than $250 
during the previous 12 months.  
 
(B) This section shall not apply to the following types of loans:  
 
1. A loan made to the campaign committee of an elected officer or a candidate for elective office. 
 
2. A loan that would otherwise not be a gift as defined in this title. 
 
3. A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under subdivision (A), but on which the 
creditor has taken reasonable action to collect the balance due. 
 
4. A loan that would otherwise be a gift as set forth under subdivision (A), but on which the 
creditor, based on reasonable business considerations, has not undertaken collection action. 
Except in a criminal action, a creditor who claims that a loan is not a gift on the basis of this 
paragraph has the burden of proving that the decision for not taking collection action was based 
on reasonable business considerations. 
 
5. A loan made to a debtor who has filed for bankruptcy and the loan is ultimately discharged in 
bankruptcy. 
 
(C) Nothing in this section shall exempt any person from any other provisions of Title 9 of the 
Government Code.  
 

Page 45 of 53



-8- 

(9) Section 9. Disqualification. 
 
No designated employee shall make, participate in making, or in any way attempt to use his or 
her official position to influence the making of any governmental decision which he or she 
knows or has reason to know will have a reasonably foreseeable material financial effect, 
distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on the official or a member of his or her 
immediate family or on: 
 
(A) Any business entity in which the designated employee has a direct or indirect investment 
worth $2,000 or more;  
 
(B) Any real property in which the designated employee has a direct or indirect interest worth 
$2,000 or more;  
 
(C) Any source of income, other than gifts and other than loans by a commercial lending 
institution in the regular course of business on terms available to the public without regard to 
official status, aggregating $500 or more in value provided to, received by or promised to the 
designated employee within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is made;  
 
(D) Any business entity in which the designated employee is a director, officer, partner, trustee, 
employee, or holds any position of management; or  
 
(E) Any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a gift or gifts aggregating $420 or 
more provided to, received by, or promised to the designated employee within 12 months prior to 
the time when the decision is made.  
 
(9.3) Section 9.3. Legally Required Participation. 
 
No designated employee shall be prevented from making or participating in the making of any 
decision to the extent his or her participation is legally required for the decision to be made. The 
fact that the vote of a designated employee who is on a voting body is needed to break a tie does 
not make his or her participation legally required for purposes of this section. 
 
(9.5) Section 9.5. Disqualification of State Officers and Employees. 
 
In addition to the general disqualification provisions of section 9, no state administrative official 
shall make, participate in making, or use his or her official position to influence any 
governmental decision directly relating to any contract where the state administrative official 
knows or has reason to know that any party to the contract is a person with whom the state 
administrative official, or any member of his or her immediate family has, within 12 months 
prior to the time when the official action is to be taken: 
 
(A) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms not available to members of the 
public, regarding any investment or interest in real property; or  
 

Page 46 of 53



-9- 

(B) Engaged in a business transaction or transactions on terms not available to members of the 
public regarding the rendering of goods or services totaling in value $1,000 or more.  
 
(10) Section 10. Disclosure of Disqualifying Interest. 
 
When a designated employee determines that he or she should not make a governmental decision 
because he or she has a disqualifying interest in it, the determination not to act may be 
accompanied by disclosure of the disqualifying interest. 
 
(11) Section 11. Assistance of the Commission and Counsel. 
 
Any designated employee who is unsure of his or her duties under this code may request 
assistance from the Fair Political Practices Commission pursuant to Section 83114 and 
Regulations 18329 and 18329.5 or from the attorney for his or her agency, provided that nothing 
in this section requires the attorney for the agency to issue any formal or informal opinion. 
 
(12) Section 12. Violations. 
 
This code has the force and effect of law. Designated employees violating any provision of this 
code are subject to the administrative, criminal and civil sanctions provided in the Political 
Reform Act, Sections 81000-91014. In addition, a decision in relation to which a violation of the 
disqualification provisions of this code or of Section 87100 or 87450 has occurred may be set 
aside as void pursuant to Section 91003. 
 
_____________ 
 
1Designated employees who are required to file statements of economic interests under any other 
agency's conflict-of-interest code, or under article 2 for a different jurisdiction, may expand their 
statement of economic interests to cover reportable interests in both jurisdictions, and file copies 
of this expanded statement with both entities in lieu of filing separate and distinct statements, 
provided that each copy of such expanded statement filed in place of an original is signed and 
verified by the designated employee as if it were an original. See Section 81004. 
 
2See Section 81010 and Regulation 18115 for the duties of filing officers and persons in agencies 
who make and retain copies of statements and forward the originals to the filing officer. 
 
3For the purpose of disclosure only (not disqualification), an interest in real property does not 
include the principal residence of the filer. 
 
4Investments and interests in real property which have a fair market value of less than $2,000 are 
not investments and interests in real property within the meaning of the Political Reform Act. 
However, investments or interests in real property of an individual include those held by the 
individual's spouse and dependent children as well as a pro rata share of any investment or 
interest in real property of any business entity or trust in which the individual, spouse and 
dependent children own, in the aggregate, a direct, indirect or beneficial interest of 10 percent or 
greater. 

Page 47 of 53



-10- 

 
5A designated employee's income includes his or her community property interest in the income 
of his or her spouse but does not include salary or reimbursement for expenses received from a 
state, local or federal government agency. 
 
6Income of a business entity is reportable if the direct, indirect or beneficial interest of the filer 
and the filer's spouse in the business entity aggregates a 10 percent or greater interest. In 
addition, the disclosure of persons who are clients or customers of a business entity is required 
only if the clients or customers are within one of the disclosure categories of the filer. 
 

Note: Authority cited: Section 83112, Government Code. Reference: Sections 87103(e), 
87300-87302, 89501, 89502 and 89503, Government Code.  
 

HISTORY  
 
1. New section filed 4-2-80 as an emergency; effective upon filing (Register 80, No. 14). 
Certificate of Compliance included. 
 
2. Editorial correction (Register 80, No. 29). 
 
3. Amendment of subsection (b) filed 1-9-81; effective thirtieth day thereafter (Register 81, No. 
2). 
 
4. Amendment of subsection (b)(7)(B)1. filed 1-26-83; effective thirtieth day thereafter (Register 
83, No. 5). 
 
5. Amendment of subsection (b)(7)(A) filed 11-10-83; effective thirtieth day thereafter (Register 
83, No. 46). 
 
6. Amendment filed 4-13-87; operative 5-13-87 (Register 87, No. 16). 
 
7. Amendment of subsection (b) filed 10-21-88; operative 11-20-88 (Register 88, No. 46). 
 
8. Amendment of subsections (b)(8)(A) and (b)(8)(B) and numerous editorial changes filed 8-28-
90; operative 9-27-90 (Reg. 90, No. 42). 
 
9. Amendment of subsections (b)(3), (b)(8) and renumbering of following subsections and 
amendment of Note filed 8-7-92; operative 9-7-92 (Register 92, No. 32). 
 
10. Amendment of subsection (b)(5.5) and new subsections (b)(5.5)(A)-(A)(2) filed 2-4-93; 
operative 2-4-93 (Register 93, No. 6). 
 
11. Change without regulatory effect adopting Conflict of Interest Code for California Mental 
Health Planning Council filed 11-22-93 pursuant to title 1, section 100, California Code of 
Regulations (Register 93, No. 48). Approved by Fair Political Practices Commission 9-21-93. 
 

Page 48 of 53



-11- 

12. Change without regulatory effect redesignating Conflict of Interest Code for California 
Mental Health Planning Council as chapter 62, section 55100 filed 1-4-94 pursuant to title 1, 
section 100, California Code of Regulations (Register 94, No. 1). 
 
13. Editorial correction adding History 11 and 12 and deleting duplicate section number 
(Register 94, No. 17). 
 
14. Amendment of subsection (b)(8), designation of subsection (b)(8)(A), new subsection 
(b)(8)(B), and amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(B), (b)(9)(E) and Note filed 3-14-95; 
operative 3-14-95 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 95, No. 11). 
 
15. Editorial correction inserting inadvertently omitted language in footnote 4 (Register 96, No. 
13). 
 
16. Amendment of subsections (b)(8)(A)-(B) and (b)(8.1)(A), repealer of subsection (b)(8.1)(B), 
and amendment of subsection (b)(12) filed 10-23-96; operative 10-23-96 pursuant to 
Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 96, No. 43). 
 
17. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1) and (9)(E) filed 4-9-97; operative 4-9-97 pursuant to 
Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 97, No. 15). 
 
18. Amendment of subsections (b)(7)(B)5., new subsections (b)(8.2)-(b)(8.4)(C) and amendment 
of Note filed 8-24-98; operative 8-24-98 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4(d) 
(Register 98, No. 35). 
 
19. Editorial correction of subsection (a) (Register 98, No. 47). 
 
20. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1), (b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) filed 5-11-99; operative 5-11-
99 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4(d) (Register 99, No. 20). 
 
21. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) filed 12-6-2000; operative 1-1-
2001 pursuant to the 1974 version of Government Code section 11380.2 and Title 2, California 
Code of Regulations, section 18312(d) and (e) (Register 2000, No. 49). 
 
22. Amendment of subsections (b)(3) and (b)(10) filed 1-10-2001; operative 2-1-2001. 
Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of 
Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, 
nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative 
Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2001, No. 2). 
 
23. Amendment of subsections (b)(7)(A)4., (b)(7)(B)1.-2., (b)(8.2)(E)3., (b)(9)(A)-(C) and 
footnote 4. filed 2-13-2001. Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices 
Commission v. Office of Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, 
Third Appellate District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject 
to 1974 Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2001, No. 7). 
 

Page 49 of 53



-12- 

24. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A) filed 1-16-2003; operative 1-1-2003. 
Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of 
Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, 
nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative 
Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2003, No. 3). 
 
25. Editorial correction of History 24 (Register 2003, No. 12). 
 
26. Editorial correction removing extraneous phrase in subsection (b)(9.5)(B) (Register 2004, 
No. 33). 
 
27. Amendment of subsections (b)(2)-(3), (b)(3)(C), (b)(6)(C), (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A), (b)(9)(E) and 
(b)(11)-(12) filed 1-4-2005; operative 1-1-2005 pursuant to Government Code section 11343.4 
(Register 2005, No. 1). 
 
28. Amendment of subsection (b)(7)(A)4. filed 10-11-2005; operative 11-10-2005 (Register 
2005, No. 41). 
 
29. Amendment of subsections (a), (b)(1), (b)(3), (b)(8.1), (b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E)filed 12-18-
2006; operative 1-1-2007. Submitted to OAL pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. 
Office of Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate 
District, nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 
Administrative Procedure Act rulemaking requirements) (Register 2006, No. 51). 
 
30. Amendment of subsections (b)(8.1)-(b)(8.1)(A) and (b)(9)(E) filed 10-31-2008; operative 11-
30-2008. Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office 
of Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, 
nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative 
Procedure Act rulemaking requirements and not subject to procedural or substantive review by 
OAL) (Register 2008, No. 44). 
 
31. Amendment of section heading and section filed 11-15-2010; operative 12-15-2010. 
Submitted to OAL for filing pursuant to Fair Political Practices Commission v. Office of 
Administrative Law, 3 Civil C010924, California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, 
nonpublished decision, April 27, 1992 (FPPC regulations only subject to 1974 Administrative 
Procedure Act rulemaking requirements and not subject to procedural or substantive review by 
OAL) (Register 2010, No. 47). 
 
 
 

Page 50 of 53



Updated    2/10/2011                  Page 1 

Project Priority List 
 
PROJECTS NEARING COMPLETION 
Personnel Policy Manual (Joe Guzzetta) 
This will be considered during labor negotiations this year. 
 
PROJECTS UNDERWAY 
Update Urban Water Management Plan (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 
Contract was awarded to Kennedy Jenks at the August 4th 2010 Board meeting. State law  requires this 
update to be completed by July 1, 2011.  Three chapters have been drafted. 
Property Acquisition for Future Water Facilities (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 
The Master Plan identifies 27 to 37 million gallons of additional reservoir storage that will be needed 
to operate the District in the future.  Staff proposes to begin acquiring the land before the most ideal 
parcels are developed, especially for reservoirs which are constrained by altitude, proximity to the 
existing system, and other considerations. Potential sites are under evaluation. 
Recharge Basin & Pipeline Project  (Joe Guzzetta) 
Property has been purchased.  Monitoring well has been installed. Final design contract was awarded 
to Krieger & Stewart Engineers at August 4th Board meeting and is 40% complete. Construction is 
contingent on Proposition 84 and other funding. 
Final Phase of 4” Pipe Replacement  (Joe Guzzetta, Joe Bocanegra, Keith Faul) 
Priorities have been established. 15,000’ of pipeline has been designed with 60,000’ yet to be 
designed.  Completion design and construction of this project is pending a financial strategy to be 
considered by the Board. Referred to Board Committee (Luhrs/Wilson) at the January 19, 2011  
Regular Board Meeting. 
Record Archival System  (Susan Greer – Year 1) 
Staff had second presentation. This will eventually enable the District to maintain more electronic files 
for easier access and less physical storage. 
Field Laptop Computers (Keith Faul – Year 1) 
Laptops are being installed 
Hauling Station Coin/Card Reader – Under Study (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 
Staff is considering a system to enable selling of water at the hauling station.  
 
PROJECTS COMPLETED 
Well #16   (Randy Little)   
The well has been completed and is permitted by Department of Health Services. 
Hot Master + Backup Computer – SCADA (Randy Little – Year 1) 
Complete. This computer provides backup to the Telemetry System.   
LAFCO Mandatory Municipal Services Review (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 
State law requires LAFCO to conduct a review of each agency’s boundaries and services (at agency 
cost) to determine the appropriateness and to recommend any changes. LAFCO will conduct a hearing 
on January 19. 
 
PROJECTS NOT BEGUN:  YEAR 1 
Develop/Update Board Policies and Procedures (Susan Greer) 
Update 3030 Plan (Joe Guzzetta) 
Staff intends to solicit proposals for this project. 
Election to Charge Private Wells for Replacement Water 
Attorney is reviewing election options. 

Page 51 of 53



Updated    2/10/2011                  Page 2 

Fire Cabinet for Maps (Keith Faul – Year 1) 
Custom Software Programming  (Susan Greer/Keith Faul – Year 1) 
Adds lacking features to the District’s main software program, such as reports or functions, and 
specific items not yet identified. 
Conduct Fee Study/Update Rate Study (Susan Greer – Year 1)  
Miscellaneous fees are being developed based upon resources used; staff, vehicle, equipment, etc.  
A rate study update will determine what rate changes are needed in the next several years to maintain  
services. A proposal is under consideration by the Board. 
 
 
GIS Server for Field Login (Keith Faul – Year 1) 
Field crew will receive laptop computers to be used in the field for more accuracy and efficiency.  This 
server is needed in order to connect to the GIS system. 
Storage Bays for Rock, Sand, Asphalt (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 
This will allow for more orderly storage of rock, sand, and asphalt which are used regularly in normal 
district operations. 
Pressure Reducing Station Replace/Refurbishment (Randy Little – Years 1-2) 
Assess and overhaul or replace PRV/PSV/Altitude valve over a three year period.  Twelve in use, one 
completed.   
 
PROJECTS NOT BEGUN:  YEAR 2 
Carpet for Office (Terry Spurrier – Year 2) 
D31 New Booster Pumps and Housing (Randy Little – Year 2) 
The pumps at this booster station operate at a low efficiency rate such that it is timely to replace them. 
Chlorine Analyzers With Telemetry Programming (Randy Little – Year 2) 
Install analyzers to monitor chlorine residual at up to four remote sites. 
Flow Meter Refurbishment (Randy Little – Year 2) 
Four remaining flow meters (2 this year) with digital displays and telemetry plus DTS programming. 
Asphalt Installation Equipment – Under Study (Jim Corbin – Year 2) 
Pipe Holder (Jim Corbin – Year 2) 
The District stores small amounts of plastic pipe for repairs.  There is nowhere out of the sun to do so.  
Over time the pipe can deteriorate when exposed to the sun.  This will provide shade. 
Altitude Valves at C2B, SCADA Electric Controls C1 and C3 Tanks (Randy Little – Year 2) 
These valves will prevent the overflowing of the C Zone tanks. 
Space Needs Assessment for Office Building Addition (Joe Guzzetta – Year 2 (per Board deferral) 
A needs assessment will determine how much space the District needs for an Emergency Operations 
Center in order to apply for grant construction funds. This item was discussed at the August 4, 2010 
Board meeting, and deferred. 
Relocate C2 Tank & J Booster (Randy Little – Years 2-3) 
This project has been designed and would relocate a 500,000 gallon tank from the C Zone where it is 
no longer needed to the H Zone where it is severely needed.  The project was deferred pending 
funding. 
System Reliability Upgrade for Hospital and County Complex; C, B and D3 zones (Jim Corbin – 
Years 2-3) 
This entire area has one single water supply feed.  It does not have a redundant water supply for 
emergency situations.  Staff has proposed a secondary “emergency” source. 
 
PROJECTS NOT BEGUN:  YEAR 3 
Security (Motion Sensors) at Shop and Well 10 (Randy Little – Year 3) 

Page 52 of 53



Updated    2/10/2011                  Page 3 

This would provide security to an expanded area at the shop.   
 
 
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PROJECTS:  (Postponed to determine funding 
potential) 
Well 10 and 14 Soft Start Bypass – Generator Controls  (Randy Little – Year 1)  
The new 600 KW generators need this equipment in order to operate properly at the two largest 
producing wells. 
Earthquake Shutoff Valves for Three Tanks (Randy Little – Year 1) 
Currently, if a pipe from a reservoir is broken the entire reservoir can be drained unless a valve is 
manually located and shut off. This will provide automatic shutoff in case of earthquake to the two 
major C tanks and the B tank serving the hospital. 
Transfer Switches at Remaining Booster Sites (Randy Little – Year 1) 
The switches are needed in order to be able to use the emergency generators at the pump stations. 
Large Meter Bypasses (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 
Currently, in order to test or remove a large meter, the service needs to be disconnected.  This is a 
serious problem for some large meters such as the hospital.  The bypass will allow the meter to be 
removed and replaced without discontinuing service. 
Emergency Supplies (Rick Cook – Years 1-2) 
These include food, water, cots, etc. for serious emergencies for employees. 
 

Page 53 of 53




